APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
AUGUST 27, 2019

7:00PM
CALL TO ORDER:
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission for August 27, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM

CALL OF ROLL:
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Bryan Murdock, Katie West and Judy Coughlin

ABSENT: None.

Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator, Robb Linwood, City Administrator and Mayor Lisa
Iverson

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM: NONE
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for August 13, 2019

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ERICSON, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR AUGUST
13, 2019 AS SUBMITTED.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None
Absent: None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE
NEW BUSINESS

2. Sketch Plan: D-19-005 Katie’s Glen
Parcel north of 25577 Goodview Avenue
Property ID Number: 21.00140.00

Scott Wold of SW Wold Construction in Ramsey stated that they are proposing a PUD of 51 single
family, detached townhomes on an 18-acre parcel. He stated that they have built similar projects
in both Elk River and Monticello that have been well received. He noted that about 2/3 of the
homes are proposed to have a 3-car garage and the remainder will be 2-car garages. He stated
that water and sewer has been stubbed in near the subdivision. He explained that they are
proposing greenspace but not park land in the subdivision.

1



Commissioner Murdock asked how many significant trees are located on this parcel.

Mr. Wold stated that they have not done an assessment of the trees on this parcel at this point
but in looking at the plat, he suspects about 50% of the trees may need to be removed. He stated
that these homes will not require a lot of excavating because they will be crawl space homes and
noted that they will try to save as many as they can.

Commissioner Murdock asked if there would be a homeowner’s association.

Mr. Wold stated that it will be a managed association.

Commissioner Coughlin confirmed that the planned pond will be a stormwater retention pond.
She asked what the townhomes will cost.

Mr. Wold stated that they will run about $225,000 to $250,000 for the home only and then there
will be package options that will run between $330,000 to $400,000.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she is excited about a project like this coming to the City.
Chair Lobermeier stated that this project feels like a good fit for the City.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that this is fairly close to the Sunrise River and asked if there
would be any shoreland restrictions because of its proximity.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it is far enough away from the Sunrise River that it will not
have any restrictions.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if he anticipated the number of lots decreasing when the wetlands
are delineated.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it is a possibility but there is no way to know before they
complete the wetland delineation.

Commissioner Coughlin noted that in the staff report, it stated, “Other important considerations
are environmental issues concerning delineation of wetlands, tree preservation, and adjacent
planned land uses.” She asked what adjacent planned land uses had to do with this project.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that is a good question and he is not sure what the engineers
were referring to with that statement.

Commissioner Coughlin noted that on page 3 of the staff report under Natural
Resources/Wetlands, there is a sentence that begins but doesn’t end. The sentence starts with,
“The sketch plan identifies and area”.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he was unsure if this was an unfinished thought or if a
template was used and they neglected to erase that before submitting it.

Chair Lobermeier asked about density restrictions in a PUD.

Zoning Administrator Weck read aloud from the City Code for PUD requirements and noted that
a PUD keeps the density the same, but will allow them to vary the size of the lots in this parcel.

Commissioner Murdock asked if it was the developer’s choice to complete a tree survey or use a
square footage calculation. He asked why the square footage calculation was even an option.

2



Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the ordinance doesn’t say whose choice it is and noted
that either way, they will still need to complete a tree inventory. He noted that the square footage
calculation was included when it was adopted by the City. He read aloud a portion of the tree
preservation ordinance.

Mr. Wold asked what the next steps were for this project.

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that the sketch plans do not go before the City Council, so the
next step would be the Preliminary Plat.

3. Site Plan Review: S$-19-002  Polaris Parking Lot Expansion
7400 East Viking Boulevard
Property ID Number: 21.0001.25

Kevin Pfeiffer, Wenck Associates, stated that he is working with Polaris on expanding the parking
area. He explained that they are looking at adding 3 different parking areas that will add an
additional 190 parking stalls. He stated that the existing pond will stay as it is because it has been
sized appropriately to take on this additional stormwater.

Commissioner Ericson asked if the proposed parking is because of expansion or because there
is not enough parking right now.

Mr. Pfeiffer stated that his understanding is that the employees working there do not have enough
stalls and are parking in gravel areas, so this would give them the option of parking on a paved
surface.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that there were quite a few things that were asked for in the staff
report and asked if the applicant had a chance to look at those things.

Mr. Pfeiffer stated that he had reviewed their requests and many of them are recommendations
on how to deal with the drainage.

Commissioner Coughlin asked why there are a number of suggestions from the City Engineer’s
report that are not included in the staff recommendation.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he believes the incorrect term was used and instead of
saying “should”, it should say “shall” because a suggestion doesn’t do the City any good.

Chair Lobermeier suggested that Mr. Pfeiffer have a conversation with the City Engineer to
discuss these issues. He stated that staff is recommending approval with 5 conditions and he
would like another condition added that the applicant coordinates with the City Engineer regarding
their suggestions.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
ERICSON, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN - S-19-002 FOR POLARIS
PARKING LOT EXPANSION AT 7400 EAST VIKING BOULEVARD, PROPERTY ID
NUMBER 21.0001.25, WITH THE CONDITION ADDED THAT THE APPLICANT WORK
WITH THE CITY ENGINEER ON THE SUGGESTIONS INCLUDED IN THE STAFF
REPORT.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None



4. Site Plan Review: S-19-003  A-1 Mini Storage
24060 Greenway Avenue
Property ID Number: 21.10678.50

Zoning Administrator Weck gave an overview of the proposed site plan and noted that it is different
than the most recent plans that were previously submitted by the former owner.

Commissioner Murdock stated that most of this site is wetland and asked what the City did for
back up septic sites for commercial development.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that if they needed to replace the system if could essentially
be put in the same location.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the last time this was before the Commission she remembers
that it was being done piecemeal and that the whole site was not being considered and they were
basically bypassing the permit process.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that was part of the problem with the previous owner and this
plan shows all the possible configurations.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that just like the previous agenda item, there appear to be
suggestions included in the engineering report that are not included in the recommendations. She
also noted that under staff recommendations, there is nothing listed for #3. She stated that she
would like one of the recommendations be to work with the City Engineer.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he agrees with the idea of adding a condition that the applicant work
with the City Engineer.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL FOR THE SITE PLAN - S-19-
003 FOR A-1 MINI STORAGE AT 24060 GREENWAY AVENUE, PROPERTY ID NUMBER
21.10678.50, WITH THE ADDITION OF A CONDITION THAT THE APPLICANT WORK
WITH THE CITY ENGINEER ON THE SUGGESTIONS INCLUDED IN THE STAFF
REPORT.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

OLD BUSINESS:
5. Comprehensive Plan Update. Public Engagement Strategy Development

City Administrator Linwood stated that based on the discussion at the August 13, 2019 meeting,
he has brought back an updated newsletter as well as updated survey questions. He stated that
staff is looking for feedback from the Commission. He noted that this is just draft information and
the pictures included in the newsletter are just placeholders. He stated that staff is aware of a
few incorrect items in the newsletter.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels the updated versions are exactly what the Commission was
discussing at the last meeting. He stated that the hope is that the Commission will be ready to
send this over to the City Council for approval at their next meeting.



Commissioner West stated that she likes the updates and also likes the colors used on the
newsletter because it draws attention.

Commissioner Ericson stated that he thinks it is concise and not overly complicated.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she would suggest eliminating the portion where it lists a
specific date for the public meeting because the City doesn’t yet know when the meeting will be.
She stated that it could be changed to something like, “The process will start with the first public
open house that will be held sometime this fall.” She pointed out that “parks and trails” are
mentioned more than once which gives the impression that the City is trying to focus on just parks
and trails. She suggested that section be changed to state, “Additional public workshops will
focus on the above as well as other important topics that come up during the public process.”
She suggested that before the final paragraph under Plan update Process she would like to see
a header in bold print that says, “How You Can Help”.

Commissioner Murdock stated that the newsletter uses both the term “workshop” and “open
house” and believes that it should be one or the other.

Commissioner West suggested that the term “workshop” not be used because it sounds too
formal and business like.

There was a consensus of the Commission agreed that references to workshop and open
house be changed to “community meeting”.

Commissioner Coughlin noted that at the last meeting there was discussion about changing the
phrase “Your Role as a Citizen” and suggested that it be simplified and just state “Your Role”.
She stated that on the “We Need Your Input!” page, she would like to see a small change to the
sentence, “These values are translated into the type of land use the City desires and programs
regarding economic development, housing, parks, transportation and other key areas.” She
stated that the City doesn’t really have programs and thinks that should be changed to “policies”.
She stated that she would also like the wording changed in the last sentence on this page to state,
“participating” rather than “participate” and “using” rather than “use”. She asked if the survey
would be sent as a stand-alone document or along with the newsletter.

City Administrator Linwood stated that is up for more discussion by the Commission. He stated
that he believes the consensus from the last meeting was to send the newsletter out but to utilize
Survey Monkey for the surveys themselves as well as placing hard copies of the survey in various
public places around the City.

Chair Lobermeier suggested moving on to give feedback on the updated survey. He stated that
the last question on the first page says, “Where are the greatest opportunities for the community?”
isn’t clear because it makes him wonder, “opportunities for what?”

Commissioner Coughlin noted that the paragraph used at the top of the survey is the same one
that is used in the newsletter and suggested that the same changes be made to this one to use
the word policies instead of programs.

Commissioner Murdock suggested adding the word “we” to the second to the last question on the
first page so the full question says, “What things could we do better?”

Commissioner Coughlin stated that her comment, in general, was that she still feels like the survey
is missing the boat in terms of the Comprehensive Plan and could do a better job of targeting the
questions towards the Comprehensive Plan. She stated that she found the City of Jordan’s
Comprehensive Plan survey as well as a few others that she thought were really good examples.
She read aloud some of the questions that were included in Jordan’s survey. She stated that

5



they also added an incentive for including their contact information. She read aloud a few
questions from the Madison County survey.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he did hear a few good questions in the ones Commissioner
Coughlin listed off, but noted that he would like to move forward with the process and get things
moving. He asked if there were a few questions that were really important to Commissioner
Coughlin that could be included or substituted in our survey. He stated that he like the City of
Jordan’s question about transportation. He noted that many of their questions appear to be
multiple choice.

Commissioner West stated that having a multiple-choice option for some of these questions would
really help make it easier to compile the information.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he agrees that there may be a few questions from Commissioner
Coughlin’s example that could be substituted into the survey. He stated that he wants the survey
to be as concise as possible. He stated that he liked the question that asked, “What is one
improvement that you would like to see within the next 5 years?” He reminded the Commission
that the survey is just one avenue of gathering information and feedback from the residents.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the 5" question on the second page should have the word
“our” changed to “are”.

Commissioner Murdock asked whether the first question on page 2 should say “opportunities” or
be changed to say something else or if it was meant to be a follow-up question to the previous
question.

City Administrator Linwood stated that it does appear to be a bit redundant.

Commissioner West stated that the word “opportunities” is a bit vague and suggested some
possible changes such as “achieving” or “improvements”.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she thinks the survey is a little heavy on questions relating to
parks and thinks that all 3 questions are not needed.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks one of the first two park questions could be
eliminated.

There was a Consensus of the Commission to remove the first question that asked how
often residents use a City park or trail and to replace the question that asked what type of
park amenities should be priorities be replaced with question #16 from the Jordan survey.

Commissioner Murdock suggested replacing the question that asks what things the City could do
better with question #13 regarding transportation from the Jordan survey.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she also likes their question #14 that asks for opinions on
sidewalk and trail systems. She stated that she is not sure what the information will provide for
the City with the question that asks “What is your favorite place to visit in Wyoming and how to
you get there?” She stated that she would like to perhaps change that question to focus more on
how they would like to get to the places that they visit in the City.

Chair Lobermeier stated that finding out the favorite places people visit may be helpful from an
EDA standpoint. He stated that he would also like to perhaps change the question to ask how
people like to get around the City.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he likes the question that asks what their favorite place to visit

6



in the City is and wants to know the answer.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the survey could keep that portion of the question and then break
off a separate question on how people like to get around town which would lend itself to
information on the sidewalk and trail systems.

Commissioner Coughlin read aloud some questions from Madison County’s survey. She asked
whether the City should try to address the lack of transportation options in the City in a survey
about the Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he finds it fairly easy to walk in the City even without sidewalks
and asked if she was thinking about public transportation options such as buses.

City Administrator Linwood stated that the Council has identified some transportation related
issues in their goals. He explained that the Council is looking into this issue. He noted that
Heartland Express is looking at expanding their routes but the City was also looking at other
options. He explained some of the pedestrian improvements that will happen along Highway 61
as part of the resurfacing projects.

Commissioner Ericson asked what the City gains by the question about their favorite place to go
in the City. He stated that the question only asks about what is currently here and thinks that the
goal should be to look forward at what we want for the future.

Commissioner West stated that there is a question that asks what people would like the City to
focus on.

Commissioner Ericson stated that their favorite place doesn’t matter but how they want to get
around the City in the future really matters.

Commissioner Murdock stated that the Commission had talked about separating those questions
out already. He stated that he likes asking about their favorite place but suggested that it would
be changed to ask what current or future amenity residents would like to see in the City.
Commissioner Ericson stated that he thinks there needs to be a future focus for the whole survey.
Commissioner Coughlin read aloud question #9 from the Jordan survey.

City Administrator Linwood stated that he thinks that because of the number of revisions being
made, this may need to come back before the Commission one more time before being sent to

the Council.

Commissioner Murdock stated that Stage Coach Days is a very important event for the City and
thinks it would be disappointing if it wasn’t ready by then.

City Administrator Linwood stated that he can try to take the feedback from the Commission and
put them together for the Council.

There was a Consensus of the Commission that it is important to try to have the survey
ready for Stage Coach Days and to include it in the Council packet for the next meeting.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that on page 3 of the survey where it lists items to be ranked, she
would remove the word “Great” from the third line and change it to “As a place to live”

Chair Lobermeier stated that they had suggested the word “Great” be added at the last meeting
that Commissioner Coughlin missed.



Commissioner Coughlin stated that she doesn’t understand the next one what asks people rate
neighborhoods.

Commissioner Murdock noted that it could be changed to “Quality of Neighborhoods”
Commissioner West stated that it could be “Your Neighborhood”.
Commissioner Coughlin asked what benefit this information would give the City.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he understands her issue and would be fine taking that one out of
the survey.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she also suggested changing the next two items and remove
the word “Great” and replace it with the word “As”. She stated that she doesn’t understand what
“Low cost of public services” means and finds it very confusing.

There was a Consensus to strike the “Low Cost of Public Services” question.

Commissioner Coughlin questioned whether the Transparency in Government question belongs
on a survey that is for the Comprehensive Plan. She stated that the next line is some sort of
mistake because is says, “Decisions Sense of Community”.

Commissioner West stated that she thinks the word decisions belongs in the line that is talking
about government transparency.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that this page begins with “How would you rate the following in
Wyoming?”, so a phrase that simply says “Recommend Wyoming” and “Remain in Wyoming” do
not fit with the original question.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels both of those phrases could be removed because there is
already a question about Wyoming being a great place to live.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she thinks the “Remain in Wyoming” could be changed to
“Likelihood of Remaining in Wyoming”. She stated that she thinks that the verbiage in the next
line should say “Maintaining”.

Commissioner Murdock suggested changing it to “Preservation of Natural Landscapes”.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she would suggest the next item say, “Having Clean and Well
Maintained Streets/Roads”. She would also suggest that this section be numbered and a
comment section be offered at the bottom of the page, so people could give a more detailed
answer and reference the number above.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the business survey does not have the same sense of urgency as
the resident survey. He suggested that the Commission could take a look at this survey for the
next meeting.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she only has two comments on the business survey. She
suggested that the information section at the top be considered optional. She stated that people
may be more willing to provide feedback if they do not have to identify themselves or their
company.

City Administrator Linwood stated that he is not too concerned that people will be hesitant to
include the information when they give feedback, but it can be listed as optional if the Commission

8



would feel more comfortable with it.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that on item 2 there is a question about “Legislation (local)”. She
asked if there would be a different word that could be used because most people think legislation
take place at the capital.

Mayor Iverson stated that she thinks legislation is a good word and would like to see it kept
because the City is very involved.

Commissioner Ericson noted that there should be a page break added after question number 3,
so all the information in question #4 is together at the top of the second page.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like a “cost of business/taxes” be included in the
ranking options. He asked about the purpose of question #3.

Commissioner Ericson stated that he felt it would be helpful to see what types of businesses are
responding in order to classify and compile the things that are important to the different types of
businesses.

Commissioner Murdock stated that the phrase “elevator pitch” may make people nervous and
suggested that the City just ask for a brief description of their business.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks the City needs to remember that the survey is just the
beginning of the conversation between the City and the businesses.

COMMUNICATIONS: NONE
UPDATES: NONE
NEXT REGULAR MEETING:

SEPTEMBER 10, 2019
7:00PM




	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

